M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
February 21, 2002
9:36 AM

TAPES

SFC-02 # 13, Side
SFC 02 # 13, Side
SFC 02 # 14, Side
SFC 02 # 14, Side

W>w>

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Pete Kelly convened the neeting at approximately 9:36 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Dave Donl ey, Co-Chair
Senator Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senator Lyda G een

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senator Loren Lenman

Senat or Donal d 4 son

Al so Attendi ng: SENATOR CGENE THERRI AULT; REPRESENTATIVE FRED
DYSON, EDDI E JEANS, School Finance Manager, School Finance and
Facilities Section, Education Support Services, Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent; DARROCLL HARGRAVES, Executive
Director, Al aska Council of School Adm nistrators; DARWN PETERSON,
staff to Senator Torgerson; SALLY SADDLER, Business Devel opnent
Speci al i st/ Legi sl ative Liaison, Dvision of International Trade and
Mar ket Devel opnent, Depart ment of Community and Econom c
Devel opnent; CHI P DENNERLEIN, Director, D vision of Habitat and
Restoration, Departnment of Fish and Gane; ANNALEE MCCONNELL,
Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget, Ofice of the Governor;

Attending via Tel econference: From Fairbanks: TIM DORAN,
Presi dent, Al aska Associ ation of Elenentary School Principals, and
Principal, Denali Elenmentary School; From Of-Net Site: DEBBIE
OSSI ANDER, Menber and Legi sl ative Chair, Anchorage School Board,
JUDY BI TTNER, Chief/State H storic Preservation Oficer, Ofice of
Hi story and Archaeol ogy Al aska Historical Conm ssion, Division of
Par ks and Qutdoor Recreation, Departnent of Natural Resources; From

SFC- 02 (1) 02/ 21/ 02



Anchorage: WLL ABBOIT, Comm ssioner, Regulatory Comm ssion of
Al aska; GARY PROKOSCH, Water Resources Section, Division of Mning,
Land and Water, Departnent of Natural Resources; JACK HESSI ON,
Al aska Public Water Coalition

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

SB 11- COVPULSORY SCHOCOL AGE

The Comm ttee heard fromthe sponsor, the Departnent of Education
and Early Devel opnment and representatives from school districts.
The bill was held in Conmttee.

SB 140- SMALL WATER- PONER DEVELOPMENT PRQJECTS

The Commttee heard fromthe sponsor, the Regul atory Conm ssion of
Al aska, the Departnment of Natural Resources, the Departnent of
Communi ty and Econom c Devel opnent, the Departnent of Fish and Gane
and the Alaska Public Water Coalition. The bill was held in
Commi ttee.

HB 349- AGENCY PROGRAM AND FI NANCI AL PLANS

The Commttee heard fromthe sponsor and the O fice of Managenent
and Budget. The bill was held in Cormttee.

HB 96- ACQUI RI NG JESSE LEE HOVE

The Committee heard from the Departnment of Natural Resources. An
anendnent was adopted and the bill noved from Commttee.

#SB11

SENATE BI LL NO. 11
"An Act relating to the legal age for attending school; and
providing for an effective date."

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

SENATOR GENE THERRI AULT, sponsor, testified this legislationis in
response to conversations he had with the principal of an
el ementary school located in his district. He was told of parents
enrolling their children in school at age six, although the
mandat ory school age requirenent is age seven. He stated the
probl em arises when sone of these six-year-old students attend
class inconsistently and the school has no authority to require

SFC- 02 (2) 02/ 21/ 02



attendance. He said this causes a hardship for the teachers, who
invest time and resources attenpting to "keep these children up to
speed” with the rest of the cl ass.

Senator Therriault indicated the benefits of early education and
informed this bill lowers the nandatory attendance age from age
seven to age six. He stressed this |egislation does not anend the
list of 12 exenptions currently in statute that allow parents to
withhold their children fromthe public education system He gave
ill ness, home schooling, and private schooling as exanples of the
exenpti ons.

Senator Therriault spoke to m sconceptions that this bill negates
the exenptions and requires all children in Alaska to enter the
public school system Rather, he remarked, this |egislation,
stipulates that once a child is enrolled in the public school
system that child nust attend. He enphasized the intent is that
parents do not treat the school system as a convenient day care
system or baby-sitter, for six year olds.

Senator Therriault pointed out the effective date contained in the
bill that was introduced in the first session of the Twenty- Second
Legi sl ature, nust be anended to reflect the current year.

Senator O son asked the affect on those children who attend private
school or who are hone school ed.

Senator Therriault replied this legislation only applies to
children in public school and has no inpact on private schools or
hone school systens. He stated that the parents in these instances
are utilizing their own financial resources rather then public
funds. He reiterated the intent is to mnimze the inpact on a
public school classroom caused from a student who has missed a
significant anmount of school because of the anobunt of tinme the
teacher nust refocus toward that student.

TIM DORAN, President, Alaska Association of Elenentary School
Principals, and Principal, Denali Elenentary School, testified via
tel econference from Fairbanks to strongly support the change for
mandat ory school attendance to age six. He noted the average seven-
year-old is in second grade and because this is the earliest age of
mandat ory attendance, a child could begin school for the first tine
two years behind his peers. He spoke to the physical and
devel opnental | evels of seven-year-olds conpared to five and six
year ol ds.

M. Doran stressed that starting children in school at age six
woul d give educators "a real benefit in working with parents

SFC- 02 (3) 02/ 21/ 02



t hroughout first grade and even kindergarten.” He stated that
studi es show t hat exposure to the school environnent at an earlier
age has an inpact on a student's future education.

M . Doran gave exanples of his experiences teaching in both rural
and urban schools. He told of the di sadvantages sone children face
when they do not attend school until a |ater age. He stressed that
under current law, school districts could not require these
children to attend school.

M. Doran also noted the nane of the Departnent of Education was
changed a few years prior to add Early Devel opnent. He saw this
bill "as another way for us to really pronote good solid early
education for kids; really helps themin the process as we are all
trying to be accountable for the education for students throughout
the community, not just within the school system™

Co-Chair Donley surmsed the witness' main concern is that once
children are enrolled in the public school system they are at the
sane |level as other students. He expressed that to achieve this
goal, the mandatory attendance age does not have to be | owered. He
suggested requiring that attendance is nmandatory for those enrolled
students, regardl ess of their age.

M. Doran agreed Co-Chair Donley's recomendati on woul d address the
i ssue of student attendance. He remarked that currently the school
district has no authority in enforcing truancy rules for those
students bel ow the age of seven.

Co-Chair Donley stressed the legislature has the ability to "re-
craft the law' to require attendance of those children who are
enrol led, yet still allow parents the flexibility to determ ne when
their children should begin school.

M. Doran agreed this would be beneficial to students who have
enroll ed, but would not benefit those children who do not begin
school before the age of seven. He stressed the disadvantage of
children who have no early schooling then enter the school at a
| ater age then their peers. He clarified the issue is not with
parents who chose to honme school their children, but for those
chil dren who receive no education.

Co-Chair Kelly stated there are two issues involved. The first
relates to parents who treat the school system as a day care
center, "which interrupts the education process.” The other, he
said, relates to the best age to begin educati on. He understood the
sponsor is intending to address the first, nore practical, issue.

SFC- 02 (4) 02/ 21/ 02



Senator Therriault affirmed and noted this |egislation does not
af fect the exenptions for del aying schooling. He expressed, "those
12 things pretty much cover anything" and if a parent wants their
child out of school at |east one of the exenptions could apply.

Senator Therriault reiterated this legislation addresses those
parents who enroll their child in school but then do not have the
child attend regularly. He stated the |anguage is the "cleanest™
way to address the issue.

Co-Chair Donley referenced the |ist of exenptions and noted they
are broad. He asked about regulations that interpret the statute.

EDDI E JEANS, School Finance Manager, School Finance and Facilities
Section, Education Support Services, Departnent of Education and
Early Devel opnent, testified there are no regulations that further
interpret the 12 exenptions.

Co-Chair Donley asked which exenption would apply if a parent
"sinply didn't feel their child was ready to attend school ."

M. Jeans listed nunber 12: the child is educated in the child's
honme by the parent or |egal guardian. He explained there are no
specific requirements as to what kind of education nust be
provi ded.

Co-Chair Donley asked if there are interpretations of the quality
of education inposed by the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnment or | ocal school districts.

M. Jeans was unaware of any.

Co-Chair Donley asked if school districts or the Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnent have authority to inpose such
requi renents.

M. Jeans answered the Departnent coul d adopt regul ations.

M. Jeans suggested consideration of other statutes relating to age
requi rements in education, specifically AS 14.03.070 commonly known
as the School Age Law. He detailed the provision identifies
chil dren between the age of six years by August 16 and 20 years,
who have not conpleted the 12'" grade. Therefore, he said anending
t he conpul sory attendance age from seven to six years old, "mekes
sense to nme." He noted kindergarten is not required in Al aska.

Senat or Ward asked how many children started school |ast year at
t he age of seven.

SFC- 02 (5) 02/ 21/ 02



M. Jeans answered he did not have this information.

Senator Therriault cited the nost recent data avail able from 1995
showi ng that of the total population, 98.7 percent of children
bet ween the ages of seven to nine were enrolled in school and that
96 percent of children aged five and six were enrolled in school.

Senator Ward wanted to know how many chil dren begin school at age
seven. He understood the 1995 figures, as well as M. Doran's
experience with one student, but stated they do not describe the
probl em

M. Jeans noted the Departnent has records of the nunber of
students enroll ed, but does not nonitor the nunber of seven-year-
olds enrolled for the first tine,

Co- Chair Donley shared he had reviewed AS 14.03.070, which is a
definition of "school age". He asked if this definition serves any
function in other statutes.

M. Jeans replied the purpose of the definition is for providing
state funds for public schools. He referenced AS 14.03.080 as
stipulating the right to attend school wthout the paynment of
tuition. He noted one provision of the right to attend school
allows a child to attend kindergarten at the age of five years.

Co-Chair Donley clarified that AS 14.03.070 is wutilized for
financial purposes only and does not relate to the policy
established in AS 14.03. 010, which sets the nmandatory age.

M. Jeans affirnmed but noted this legislation would align the two
statutes.

Senator Therriault stressed the parent’s flexibility of when a
child attends school is not renoved. He reiterated the child could
attend kindergarten at age six, or the parent could utilize one of
the 12 exenptions and withhold the child from school until the age
of seven.

Senator Therriault stressed the expenditure of efforts to
accommodat e those students who only periodically attend school. He
understood and synpathized wth other efforts to enroll al
children in school at an earlier age, but qualified that is not the
pur pose of this |egislation.

Co-Chair Kelly asked for clarification, noting that if a parent
does not take advantage of one of the 12 exenptions, the child

SFC- 02 (6) 02/ 21/ 02



woul d be required to be enrolled in school at the age of six.

Senator Therriault enphasized that a parent, who does not want
their child to attend school until the age of seven, could take
advantage of one of the exenptions. He reiterated the 12 exenptions
are "all enconpassing.”

Co-Chair Kelly agreed with Co-Chair Donley’s suggestion to amend
the | anguage to provide that once a child is enrolled, attendance
is mandatory, regardless of age. Co-Chair Kelly comrented that
parents, who determne their six-year-old is not ready for school,
nmust attest to one of the exenptions, essentially "nmaking a liar
out of them" Al though he assunmed sonme formof instruction would be
provi ded by the parent during this time, he questioned whether this
is "in the spirit" of these exenptions. He asked if the sponsor
woul d oppose such an anendnent.

Senator Therriault replied such an anendnent woul d be "workabl e”
al though it would be "less clear” in statutes.

M. Jeans cautioned the Commttee against such action because
currently there is no kindergarten attendance requirenent, and this
| egi sl ati on woul d set the precedent of mandatory kindergarten. He
spoke to reinbursable transportation issues involved in full-day
and hal f-day ki ndergarten prograns.

Co-Chair Kelly acknow edged and suggested | anguage coul d be drafted
to accommobdat e t hese concerns.

Senator Therriault asked if this would require the school district
to track the enrollnent date for children who transfer schools
within the district.

Co-Chair Kelly understood this is required already.

Senat or Green asserted none of these issues are pertinent because
at any tinme a parent could renove their children fromthe public
school system and educate them how they see fit. She said this
| anguage woul d further restrict parents because once enrolled, a
student could not be transferred to different education settings.
She told of tutoring children suffering fromlearning difficulties
and their nmovenment from school to school

Co-Chair Kelly did not agree.

Co-Chair Donley offered to draft |anguage to address these
concerns, which could be discussed on their nerits.

SFC- 02 (7) 02/ 21/ 02



Co-Chair Donley was encouraged the Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnent does not have regulations in place at this tine.
However, he pointed out the Departnent does have such authority and
was concerned that a future governor could be opposed to hone
school i ng and coul d adopt regulations to restrict home schooling,
whi ch he enphasi zed is very inportant to nmany Al askans.

DEBBI E OSSI ANDER, Menber and Legislative Chair, Anchorage School
Board, testified via teleconference froman off-net site in support
of the bill. She inforned the Board has passed a resolution in
favor of lowering the mandatory age for school attendance, which is
important for the "academ c preparation of children". She detail ed
state and | ocally adopted performance standards that establish high
criteria for mathematics, reading and witing for children ages
five through seven. She |listed the |anguage and reading
expectations of young children and the difficulties children
wi t hout adequate preparation could have in obtaining these skills.

Ms. Ossiander al so spoke to the intent of instilling the inportance
of regular school attendance at an early age. She said this is
difficult to encourage when attendance is required of some but not
of others.

Ms. Ossiander told of children who entered the school system for
the first tinme at the age of seven with no other education
experience and the difficulties in placing these children. She
referenced the Bush Adm nistration focus on the inportance of early
educati on.

DARROLL HARGRAVES, Executive Director, Al aska Council of Schoo
Adm nistrators, testified in Juneau that superintendents are on
record in support of this bill. He stressed the need to focus on
what is in the best interest of children. He cautioned, "it we put
too many vagaries in here," the matter could becone too conpl ex at
the school level. He supported the mandatory age change from seven
to six years of age, asserting the average six and seven year old
is different today then when this provision was originally enacted
prior to statehood. He expl ained six-year-olds "froma social and
education standpoint” need to be in school noting that they |earn
faster then six-year-olds did a decade before. He stated research
supports this. He qualified that if a child needs to delay starting
school for certain reasons, it would still be allowed.

Co- Chair Donley asked the process for enrolling a child in hone
school .

M. Hargraves was unsure but noted the process for six-year-olds
woul d be the sanme as for seven-year-olds. He understood statute

SFC- 02 (8) 02/ 21/ 02



requires that parents nust notify the school district of their
intent to hone school their child.

Co-Chair Kelly stated there are concerns within the Conmttee about
changi ng the school age. He assigned Senator Leman to draft an
anendnent that would satisfy the sponsor's intent to require
attendance of enrolled students w thout changing the nmandatory age
requirenent.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Conmittee.
#SB140

SENATE BI LL NO. 140
"An Act relating to regulation and |licensing of certain water-
power devel opnment projects.”

DARW N PETERSON, staff to Senator Torgerson read a statenment into
the record as foll ows.

In the 106'" Congress, Senator Mirkowski sponsored Senate Bil
422 amendnent the Federal Power Act to provide for Al aska
state jurisdiction over small hydroelectric projects. This
| egislation transferred to Alaska, and only the state of
Al aska, licensing and regulatory authority over hydroel ectric
projects that are 5,000 kilowatts or |ess.

Bringing this regulatory authority closer to honme will reduce
the great tinme and expense associated with federal |icensing
and regulation of small hydro projects in A aska. The tine and
noney required for federal licensing is virtually prohibited
for sone small utility and personal projects.

Before Alaska can acquire jurisdiction from FERC (Federal
Energy Regul atory Conmi ssion), the Legislature nust approve
this bill and the Governor nust submt a program satisfying
FERC s regulatory requirenents. As SB 140 is currently
drafted, the Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska would be the
regul at ory agency responsible. Al the current environnental
protections required under federal law will still apply and
cannot be preenpted by this |egislation.

Senator Wl ken referred to Section 1(b)(2)(E) on page 2, line 9 of
the bill and questioned the necessity of the I|anguage, which
includes "the interest of Alaska Natives"” as one of six criteria
that nust be given "equal consideration"” in the establishnent of a
regul atory program

SFC- 02 (9) 02/ 21/ 02



M. Peterson referred to the set of criteria included in the
federal enabling legislation [copy on file] that Congress has
established the state nust neet before the Federal Energy
Regul at ory Comm ssion (FERC) woul d authorize transfer of regul atory
authority to the state. Included in this criterion, he pointed out,
the interest of Alaska Natives is specifically listed. He was
unsure why Congress chose this | anguage, but asserted that by not
"mrroring the federal enabling legislation," transfer could be
deni ed.

SFC 02 # 13, Side B 10:24 AM

Senator W I ken understood the need for this legislation to be
identical to the federal Ilaw, however, he argued that no
consideration is given to the private |andowner unless that
| andowner is Alaska Native. He noted the other considerations
i ncl ude protection of the environnent, recreation activities, and
energy conservation and asserted the omssion of |andowners
represents "a gap". He proposed that additional |anguage be added
to this subsection to require equal consideration for nearby
resi dents and | andowners.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if "the interest of Al aska Natives is defined
somewhere” that the Commttee could reference.

M. Peterson was unsure but surm sed there could be a process
contai ned el sewhere in FERC regul ations for addressing the interest
of | andowners. He deferred to the next w tness.

WLL ABBOTT, Conm ssioner, Regulatory Conm ssion of Al aska,
testified via tel econference from Anchorage that he could offer no
explanation either. He stated that the process to establish
regul ations for this programwould have to define the matter

Co-Chair Kelly clarified the process of adopting regul ati ons woul d
have to consider the interest of Alaska Natives, and only once
regul ati ons are adopted, would those interests be determ ned. He
again asked if there is no definition already in place.

M. Abbott stated that is his understandi ng, but qualified he does
not have definitive know edge because the programis new to the
Regul at ory Comm ssion of Alaska (RCA). He stated that FERC nust
define the | anguage, pointing out the federal |aw "l eaves an awf ul
| ot of authority wth FERC' in that this agency could approve or
not approve, the state regul ations.

SFC- 02 (10) 02/ 21/ 02



Co-Chair Kelly was nore concerned that a Native organi zation or an
Al aska Native individual could argue that a proposed project is not
inits best interest and the project would be denied on that basis.

M. Abbott predicted such an argunent woul d be consi dered equal ly
along with the other criterion relating to mtigation of wildlife,
the environment, and etc., during the process of licensing a
hydroel ectric project. He stated the decision would then be nade by
t he RCA

Co-Chair Kelly remarked that an African-Anerican, a Filipino, or
white person would not have the sanme input. He comented, "Sounds
| i ke Al abama 1952 in reverse.”

Senator A son inforned there is a federal definition of "interest
of Alaska Natives". He understood Senator WIken's concerns
regardi ng | andowners, but ascertained other issues beside |and
owner ship are invol ved.

Senator Ward shared that initially, he approved of the equal
consideration granted to Al aska Natives. He asked if sharehol ders
of the 13'" Region of the Al aska Native Lands C aim Act (ANLCA)
t hose Al aska Natives who do not reside in Al aska, are included in
this provision.

M. Abbott guessed the criteria would apply to those Al aska
Natives, but stressed that all parties would have an opportunity to
comment during the licensing process. He stated that how mnuch
weight is given to each argunent would be the decision of the
Comm ssi on.

Senator Ward asked if a project were challenged by any of these
sharehol ders, as not in their best interest, whether Al aska would
be in violation of federal lawif the argunents were ignored.

M. Abbott predicted this could be the case.

Senator Ward asked if SB 140 could be "corrected" to elimnate the
potential for "non-residents controlling resources in Al aska."

M. Abbott replied that how nuch weight is given to each criterion
coul d be consi der ed.

Senator Ward interjected he did not want the specific interest of

this group of people given any wei ght because they do not reside in
Al aska.

SFC- 02 (11) 02/ 21/ 02



Co-Chair Donley wanted a sense of the amount of power 5,000
Kilowatts generates. He requested an exanple of the diesel turbines
that supply the Cty of Bethel.

M. Abbott responded the Bethel facility 1is [larger. He
characterized a 5,000 kilowatt project as "relatively small, run of
the river-type" containnent dam"with a pipe comng down into the
turbines” but no | arge dam behind. He gave a project by Lake O ark
as an exanple, noting it provides the villages of Illiama, New
Haven and Nondalton with approxi mately two-thirds of their power.
Anot her exanple, he noted, is near Haines and would augnent the
Goat Lake Hydroel ectric Power source for Skagway and Hai nes.

Co-Chair Kelly referenced data included in the nenber's bill files
| ists several such projects [copy on file].

Co-Chair Donley asked if the term"five negawatt"” originates from
the federal |egislation.

M. Abbott affirmed and noted five negawatts is the sane
measurenent as 5,000 kilowatts.

Co-Chair Donley next asked if five megawatts is the maxi num size of
a project that would qualify for this program whether there is a
m ni mum si ze requirenment that would provide that smaller projects
are exenpt fromthese regul ations.

M. Abbott answered no, that all projects less than 5,000 kilowatts
are included in the federal |aw

Co-Chair Donley asked if there are provisions for exenpting any
projects fromregul ation

M. Abbott said there are not.

Co- Chair Donl ey next asked the status of federal regulatory reform
| egi sl ati on under congressional consideration.

M. Abbott did not know the status.

Co-Chair Donley asked if SB 140 or the federal enabling act allows
the RCA to nodify its regulations in the event the reform
| egislation is adopted in order to "lessen the regul atory burden”
on the public.

M. Abbott responded the federal enabling |egislation contains a

provision to allow the RCA to nodify regulations with approval from
FERC.

SFC- 02 (12) 02/ 21/ 02



Senator O son clarified that currently FERC approval is required
for a one-kilowatt hydroelectric project, such as those found in
mning sites that provide power for only one or two residents.

M. Abbott was only famliar with the recent federal enabling
| egislation. He reiterated the RCA nmust consult with FERC to
determ ne the perineters of the state authority.

Senator O son asked if mners operating small systens are currently
in violation.

M. Abbott again noted the projects are still under FERC
jurisdiction and that he was unfamliar with specifics.

Co- Chair Donl ey noted Congress occasionally exenpts hydroel ectric
projects fromFERC regulations primarily because a | ocal governnent
owns them He asked if there are any exenptions in the proposed RCA
program

M. Abbott affirmed there currently are such exenptions, but
inforned this |egislation does not address the matter and that this
is another issue to be determned with the FERC.

Co-Chair Kelly comrented that | ocally owned projects regul ated by
the RCA are exenpt.

Co-Chair Donley corrected that sone are exenpt but others are not.

Co- Chair Donl ey understood the policy is straightforward regarding
privately owned systens, but that policy differs when governnent-
owned systens are involved. He wanted consideration for possibly
reduci ng the anount of regul ations for governnent-owned systens.

Senator Green asked if this legislation should reference the
federal enabling statute, so that in the event regulatory reforns
are enacted, the RCA regulations would be anended autonmatically.
She said this would elimnate the need for the regul atory anendnent
process each tinme the federal |aws are changed.

M. Peterson responded this would be acceptable. He noted the only
action necessary to enact this programis a state statute providing
for the transfer of this authority from FERC to the RCA

Senator Wl ken infornmed that a five-negawatt plant is one-forth the
size of the power plant |ocated on the Chena R ver in Fairbanks. He
calculated a five-negawatt system would provide enough energy to
power 50,000 100-watt |ight bulbs. Therefore, he predicted future

SFC- 02 (13) 02/ 21/ 02



projects could be larger then the Comm ttee understood.

M. Peterson stated there are currently 53 proposed projects in the
permt application process. O those projects, he said, 42 are for
projects five nmegawatts or | ess.

Senator Ward asked if current regulations apply to snmall electrical
generating operations on mning clainms that do not sell power to
ot hers.

GARY PROKOSCH, Water Resources Section, D vision of Mning, Land
and Water, Departnent of Natural Resources, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage that FERC al |l ows exenptions for many
small projects in Alaska, including the exanple Senator Ward
provi ded.

Senator Ward asked if the new program would renove the exenptions.

M. Prokosch replied that if this |aw passed, the snall projects
would be regulated by the state RCA rather then under direct
supervision of FERC. He surm sed the inplenentation regul ations
coul d include exenptions.

Senat or Ward expressed that Senator G een’s comments are valid.

SALLY SADDLER, Busi ness Devel opnent Speci alist/Legislative Liaison,
D vision of International Trade and Market Devel opnent, Depart nent
of Conmmunity and Econom ¢ Devel opnment testified in Juneau and read
tal king points as follows.

Bill calls for RCA to adopt regulations, |icenses and
regul ate water power plants of 5 nw or |ess, essentially
creating a state version of the Federal Energy Regul atory
Comm ssion program W believe RCA is an appropriate
agency to assune these duties. It does represent an
expansi on of their current m ssion, and accordingly costs
are outlined in our fiscal note and in fiscal notes of
ot her agenci es.

Adm ni stration has an interagency team (Departnent of
Nat ural Resources, Departnent of Fish and Gane, CZM RCA
and Departnent of Community and Econom c Devel opnent)

analyzing the bill. Want to share today the conmon points
energing fromour review

W believe developnent of snmall hydro projects can
support econom ¢ devel opnent and i nprove t he

avai l ability/cost of power in rural A aska. W understand
a state program may have advantages in allowng us to
focus the process on issues pertinent to Al aska.

SFC- 02 (14) 02/ 21/ 02



Wen federal legislation was pending, the Governor
supported giving Al aska jurisdiction. At the sanme tine
the Governor recognized that this 1is a conplex
undertaking and we nust be sure a state programresults
in proper design and construction, and at the sane tine
protects fish, wildlife and the environnent at |east as
well, or as rigorously, as does FERC. The Governor al so
acknowl edged the inportance  of establishing an
appropriate funding nmechanism that could be either a
di rect appropriation or be based on a user fee system
Each agency fiscal note (RCA Departnent of Natural
Resources, and Departnent of Fish and Gane) assunes it
will take two years to develop regulations that wll
define program operations. Once state regulations are
recommended, FERC nust approve our state program before
ceding authority to the state.

Costs of operating the programin FY 05 and beyond are a
bit nore difficult to estimate. Agencies currently
understand their existing role wth FERC process but
expect during the regulations process to outline the
addi tional duties, statutes and regulatory authority they
may need to operate a program as well as FERC (for
exanple, FERC has jurisdiction over entire watersheds
while FG currently has oversight only of streanbeds.)
The State of Oregon currently has a hydro project program
that operates in addition to FERC for all hydro projects

in that state, and we wll examne their extensive
statutes and regul ations, as well as work with FERC, for
i deas.

Senator Ward asked the witness to comment on Senator Geen’'s
suggesti on.

Ms. Saddl er stated she was not in a position to respond. She noted
however, that some regulations in the existing FERC program "may
not be totally appropriate for Alaska." She understood the intent
of this programchange is to "allow us to focus on those that are
Al aska specific.”™ In adopting state regulations, she explained
projects in Al aska would not be subject to all the FERC provisions.

Senat or Leman expressed that the state should have the ability to
grant exenptions given that FERC currently does so.

Senat or Leman al so questioned the "equal consideration” |anguage
di scussed earlier. He was wunsure if this would be possible,
realistic or appropriate. He noted the provision also does not
al |l ow consi deration of other interests that could be involved. He
presuned the state statute could allow for this and remain within

SFC- 02 (15) 02/ 21/ 02



the requirenents of the federal |aw.

Senator Leman then referenced the general funds included in the
Departnent of Fish and Gane and the Departnent of Natural Resources
fiscal notes and asked if federal funding would be provided to
operate the programor whether the only benefit is the transfer of
oversight to the state.

Ms. Saddl er responded she understood the RCA would have the
opportunity to devel op regul ations that could include consideration
for other interests, provided these regul ations "neet the intent of
the FERC regul ations.” She was unsure about the anount of federal
funds available for this program

M. Abbott explained the current process in which FERC does not
collect funds fromthe applicant until the project is permtted and
begins to operate. At this tinme, he detailed, a charge is assessed
based on the anount of kilowatts produced. He assunmed these
revenues woul d be allocated to the RCA. He noted the program woul d
operat e using revenue generated from conpl eted projects, although
it is unknown how t he program woul d be funded before any projects
are conpl eted and suppl yi ng revenue.

Senator Leman asked if no revenues were generated from projects
proposed but never conpleted, the state would subsequently not
recover expenses incurred in the permtting process.

M. Abbott affirned.

JACK HESSION, Alaska Public Wter Coalition, testified via
tel econference from Anchorage and read a statenent into the record
as follows.

The Coalition includes sport fishing groups, conservation
organi zati ons, former nenbers of the Al aska Water Board and
other individuals, all of whomshare an interest in the sound
managenment and proper disposition of Al aska's publicly owned
wat er resour ces.

In sunmmary, the Coalition strongly opposes enactnent of SB
140, which would establish a state hydroelectric regul atory
program with authority to accept |icense applications for
hydroel ectric projects on state, private, and federal lands in
Al aska, including state and federal conservation systemunits.
The Coalition supports the continuation of Federal Energy
Regul at ory Conmi ssion jurisdiction on all lands in Al aska.

SFC- 02 (16) 02/ 21/ 02



| npact on state and national conservation systemunits

Under SB 140 a state license or exenption fromlicensing in a
nati onal conservation system unit would be subject to the
approval of the Secretary of the Interior or Agriculture, and
| i censing conditions could be inposed. The provision provides
insufficient protection for the national conservation system
units, as a Secretary favoring hydropower could be expected to
endorse projects in the units. The bill does not have a
simlar provision for state conservation systemunits.

Al aska jurisdiction over projects located in federa
conservation system units would be unprecedented; no state
currently has such jurisdiction. Under the Federal Power Act
and other applicable federal Ilaw, the Federal Energy
Regul atory Comm ssion does not accept applications for
hydr opower projects |located within national parks, wild and
scenic rivers, or wilderness areas, all of which are closed to
new hydr opower devel opnent.

If a state regulatory authority accepted |icense applications
for hydropower projects within these national conservations
system it wuld be nmet wth intense controversy and
litigation from citizens determned to protect the purposes
and natural values for which these |ands were set aside by
Congress. Wth equal determnation, citizens would al so defend
state conservation systemunits fromdestructive hydroel ectric
dans.

The State should not assune the cost of hydropower regul ation

SB 140 would establish a state hydroelectric regulatory
program within the Regulatory Comm ssion of Alaska for the
purpose of licensing, re-licensing, exenpting fromlicensing,
and regul ati ng hydroel ectric projects of 5 negawatts or | ess
on all lands in Alaska, with the exception of national study
rivers. The new regul atory program woul d be nodel ed after the
licensing requirenents of the Federal Energy Regulatory
Comm ssion (FERC). To ensure that the state program net these
federal requirenments, the programwoul d have to be approved by
FERC.

Putting this state regulatory programin place would require a
prof essi onal staff capable of matching FERC s expertise, and a
substanti al annual expenditure of state funds. Because the
federal law requires the state's regulatory program to
“.protect the public interest, purposes..and the environnent to
t he sane extent provided by the requirenents for |icensing and

SFC- 02 (17) 02/ 21/ 02



regulation by [FERC]," the State would be obliged to spend
approxi mately as nmuch on a regul atory program as FERC now does
for its Alaska regulatory responsibilities. (Enphasis added).
The State's cost could even exceed FERC s if state regul ators
accepted applications for dans in national conservation system
units.

To get a realistic estimate of the cost of a state regulatory
program the Commttee should consult FERC on the cost of the
Comm ssion's Al aska regul atory program

In any event, we question whether it is in the State's
interest to take on a new and costly responsibility when the
State is facing a fiscal crisis and the Legislature is seeking
to reduce, not increase, the cost of state governnent.

Federal Energy Regul atory Comm ssion

Expandi ng an existing state bureaucracy such as the Al aska
Regul at ory Conmi ssion, or creating an entirely new agency or
division in an existing departnment nmakes no sense at all when
licensing of hydroelectric projects is being conpletely
adm ni stered by FERC. The "smal | " hydropower industry, which
was the nmoving force behind the federal |aw and now supports
SB 140, has failed to show that FERC s |icensing process for
small hydro is flawed or sonmehow fails to protect the State's
interest in hydropower |icense procedures. The industry
conplains of its costs and the |length of the FERC process, but
to our know edge, the industry has been unable to cite a
single instance of an Al aska |icense application being denied
by the federal comm ssion.

lronically, t he Al aska Rur al El ectric Co- Operative
Associ ati on, which supports SB 140, had sone ki nd words about
the existing FERC process. In testinony before the Senate
Resources Conmittee's February 8 hearing on SB 140, Eric
Youl d, the Associations's Executive Director, said that "CQur
menbers have taken a certain anobunt of solace in having a
third i ndependent body, FERC, with the ability to stand up to
the federal and state agencies. W have found oursel ves at the
nmercy of the state agencies that sonetine are not friendly at
all to the very notion of hydro projects and nake the |lives of
people trying to do this quite mserable.” He said that FERC
is a "known" and "trusted" entity that acts as an i ndependent
arbiter.

H s observations bear on the fundanental question before the
Al aska Legislature as it considers SB 140: Gven that the FERC

SFC- 02 (18) 02/ 21/ 02



process is working satisfactorily, should the State rush to
replace it and assume the financial burden now carried by the
federal government? We think the answer is clearly "no."

Thus as it considers SB 140, we recommend that the Commttee
and the Legislature as a whole apply the adage "if it ain't
broke, don't fix it." FERC s program is not broken; the
Comm ssion is adequately carrying out the responsibilities
assigned to it by Congress.

Furthernore, a state takeover of FERC s responsibilities would
anount to a voluntarily accepting an unfunded nmandated from
the federal governnent. By contrast, other federal nandates to
the State are acconpani ed by substantial federal funds, an
exanpl e of which is the generous federal funding of the A aska
Surface Mning Control and Reclamation Act. Thus in order to
adequately fund a state hydropower regulatory program the
Legislature would be obliged to increase overall state
spendi ng, or take the necessary funds fromother vital state
services and progranms. Neither course is in the public
interest. Congress's offer of "small" hydropower jurisdiction
is an offer the State should politely but firmy refuse.

In conclusion, a state regulatory programwould |ikely result
in intense controversy if hydropower projects were proposed
for units of the state and national conservation systens.
Because the existing FERC licensing and regul atory process is
perform ng satisfactorily and at mninum cost to the state
government, it is not fiscally prudent for the State to assune
FERC s responsibilities and costs, particularly at a tine of
maj or shortfalls in state revenues.

We recommend that the Commttee take no further action on SB
140.

Thank you for considering our views.

CHI P DENNERLEIN, Director, Division of Habitat and Restoration

Departnent of Fish and Gane, testified he is a nenber of the
i nteragency team referenced by M. Saddler. He inforned the
Departnent of Fish and Gane is participating in this effort because
t he managenent and resolution of fish and wildlife issues, both in
resource protection and in public use, are "central to the current
FERC process” as well as central to this legislation. He stated the
intent is to establish a state program that "effectively and
efficiently hits the targets.™

M . Dennerlein pointed out Governor Tony Knowl es wrote Congress in

SFC- 02 (19) 02/ 21/ 02



support of the federal enabling |legislation and "expressed a few
conditions on funding” including "adequate state authority in
| egislation,” a source of funding sufficient to ensure "a real
progranm, and protection of fish and wldlife resources for
Al askans at | east as well as the current process.

M. Dennerlein clarified his remarks "support the concept" of
transferring regulatory authority to the RCA

M. Dennerlein noted no hydropower projects proposed in A aska that
have "passed the basic econom c anal ysis" have been opposed by the
Department. He |isted a hydroel ectric dam on Kodi ak |Island as one
maj or project that had potential inpact on fish and wildlife.

M. Dennerlein described the duties of FERC including |icensing,
econom ¢ anal ysis, due diligence, independent review and serves as
the "coordinating point for all concerns.” He continued, the agency
perfornms nonitoring and conpliance over the life of projects, as
well as re-licensing existing projects, such as those involving
restoring salnon runs in previously dry creek beds, and ensure dam
safety.

M. Dennerlein instructed on the application process and parti al
exenptions whereby the applicant agrees to abide by the "resource
agency stipulations" and full exenptions "for relatively benign
projects that do not involve significant federal |and interest."”

M. Dennerlein then detailed the relationship between the
Departnment and FERC to obtain necessary data for the Departnent to
make deci sions relating to sal non spawni ng and hydrol ogy. He noted
the Departnent "helps frane questions"” for environnental i npact
statenents, according to the provision in the Fish and Wldlife
Service Coordination Act. He elaborated on this process giving
exanpl es of determ ning whether a proposed project inpacts narsh
"where the Coho are rearing” and watershed where "the deer hunters
are concerned. "

M. Dennerlein then spoke to the inpacts of this |egislation on the
Department listing front-end costs, the permtting process,
operating expenses of the program participation of the Native
corporations and other Native organizations. He opined that nore
work is necessary to avoid an "unintended result.” He qualified the
Departnent supports snmall hydropower projects, but stressed there
are many affected parties in such a project, many of which are
conpeti ng.

Senator Lenman asked if this legislation provides specific authority
to allow for partial and full exenptions that are conparable to

SFC- 02 (20) 02/ 21/ 02



those granted by FERC that the w tness nenti oned.

M. Dennerlein answered it does. He indicated the decision would be
deferred to the Departnent. He was unsure whether federal |aw woul d
allow the state to exenpt a privately owned project.

Senator A son asked if this bill would nmake securing a permt |ess
cunbersone for small operators and or seasonal users.

M. Dennerlein answered, "That's the mllion dollar question.” He
stated the "state is wuncertain at this nonent." He surmsed a

program coul d be "crafted”, which could acconplish this.

M. Dennerlein next addressed the fiscal note, stressing it is not
possible to accurately predict the cost of operating this program
He |isted many variabl es and suggested a consultant w th experience
in this matter could be retained. He noted the State of O egon
operates a simlar program which could be a source for |ocating an
expert.

SFC 02 # 14, Side A 11:12 AM

M . Dennerlein continued speaking to the nunber of staff required
to establish this program including a full-tinme "team| eader” and
staff fromthe Departnent of Law, Departnment of Fish and Gane and
Department of Natural Resources.

Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Conmittee.
#HB349

HOUSE BI LL NO 349
"An Act relating to agency prograns and financial plans.”

This was the first hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.
REPRESENTATI VE FRED DYSON, sponsor, testified this bill would

require the Executive Branch submit to the |egislature, a budget
that prioritizes the "activities and outputs” of departnents. He
i nfornmed he had served on the Miunicipality of Anchorage Assenbly
and that Annal ee McConnell, currently director of the state Ofice
of Managenent and Budget, while working for the Minicipality,
instituted a simlar process in that body, which he said has been
ef fective. He opined the process "has a great deal of utility" and

SFC- 02 (21) 02/ 21/ 02



woul d provi de "anot her useful tool in our hands.”

Representative Dyson rel ayed that sonme concerns were raised during
House of Representative hearings on this bill. He gave an exanple
of two prograns that a departnent determnes to have equal
priority. He predicted this would be rectified as the process is
i npl enented, with an assignnment of equal priority as one option.
He noted |aw mandates sone functions and that the Minicipality
system included a nethod for quantifying these prograns. In
addition, he noted a process was inplenented for identifying
prograns that received significant funding contributions from other
sources, such as the federal governnent.

Representative Dyson qualified this legislation does not require
the Adm nistration to delineate the cost for each item He shared
that in conferring with Ms. MConnell, she told of frustrations
wi th the Minicipal process in the anbunt of tine and effort spent
identifying all costs for sonme prograns that were undi sputed as to
their continuance. He assured this legislation does not require
this expenditure of effort.

Representative Dyson al so referenced argunents nmade in the House
Finance Committee and by the nedia that the legislature is
responsi bl e for setting budget priorities and he agreed. However,
he stressed that in many instances departnent personnel is nore
know edgeabl e on these issues and it is "disrespectful” to not
include themin the process. He enphasized the |egislation would
retain the authority to change the priorities submtted by the
Executive Branch

Representati ve Dyson summari zed the purpose of this legislation is
to, "respectfully get the input fromthe people who are delivering
the services, have far nore experience and frankly are better
qualified to make those judgnments than any of us. It's our job to
set the priorities. W deserve to have the best information-best
tools to nake those."

Co-Chair Kelly reiterated the criticismraised by the director of
the O fice of Managenent and Budget, is that sonme progranms within
one departnent have different but equal value. He gave the
Department of Adm nistration as an exanple, as it inplenents the
Pi oneers' Homes and the Pernmanent Fund Divi dend prograns. He asked
if consideration had been given to a different nethod of
prioritization to accommopdate for such instances.

Representati ve Dyson anal ogi zed the A ynpi c Ganmes poi nting out that

if thereis atie in an event, the top two contestants are awarded
gold nedals and the third-place finisher receives a bronze nedal

SFC- 02 (22) 02/ 21/ 02



He further described the Anchorage process, which he stated was
done in good faith, although "never ensconced in a law." He told
how t hat process evol ved as necessary.

Co-Chair Kelly asked if the sponsor had consulted with the
Department of Law about the constitutionality of this |law and
whet her a constitutional anmendnent woul d be necessary to enact it.

Representati ve Dyson had not.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked he wanted this bill to proceed through the
| egi sl ative process, but he was concerned about the separation of
powers involved because "as we've seen in the past, you can't
really make the agencies do exactly what you want; they can just
say no and they have the constitutional authority.” He ascertai ned
that a constitutional amendment m ght be required before this |aw
could be enforced. He informed he has introduced a resolution
providing for such a constitutional anmendnent. He stated HB 349 is
an exanple of how this constitutional anmendment would be
i npl enent ed.

Senator O son referenced the title of the bill and expressed
concern that it is too broad and that unintended changes coul d be
made to the bill itself.

Co-Chair Kelly pointed out no changes to the bill had been nmade to
dat e.

Representati ve Dyson did not consider this a concern. He noted the
bill drafter at the Division of Legal and Research Services
recommended the title nane.

Senator Lenman supported the concept of the Executive Branch
prioritizing budget expenditures, but had questions about the
i npl enentation. He referenced prograns that operate using funding
sources other then the general fund, which may not have a higher
priority, but could be treated as such because of the alternate
f undi ng.

Senator Leman suggested dividing some prograns into "sub-
activities" to clarify their inportance. He predicted the
Adm nistration would claim that all activities are inportant
because the legislature directed the agencies to performthem

Representative Dyson referenced an exanple of the Minicipality of
Anchorage budget priority provided in the bill packets [copy on
file.] He pointed out the itens included "their output,” which he
stated nake prioritization easier. He assumed nost di scussion woul d

SFC- 02 (23) 02/ 21/ 02



involve a few itens at the top of the priority list. He asserted
the Conmttee is "part way there already” with the utilization of
the m ssions and neasures practice as well as inpact statenents
submtted by departnent. Practicably speaking, he qualified this
prioritization process would be valuable for evaluating only ten to
15 percent of a departnent's activities.

Representative Dyson expressed the intent of this bill, "is to
build an even nore cooperative working relationship between the
Adm nistration and the legislature.” He opined this legislation is
reasonabl e and that the process itself has been successful under
Ms. McConnell's direction at the Municipality of Anchorage.

Senator Ward asked if any other state practices a simlar
prioritization method.

Representative Dyson answered yes, but admtted he did not have
specific information as to which states. However, he stressed, all
busi nesses and individuals practice sonme nethod of prioritizing
expendi t ures.

Senator W/ ken shared Senator Leman's concerns about inplenmentation
and warned "I fear we're going to spend nore tinme worrying about
what is nunber 35 and whether it should be 45 or 25." He spoke of
operating his own business and the practice of rating expenditures
in categories of ABC. He explained "A" itens are those expenditures
that nust be nade, such as fuel; a "B" item m ght be a new truck
that shoul d be purchased; and a "C' rating would be given to "the
things we'd like to have" such as painting that new truck. He
suggested this system could be applied to budget request itens
(BRU) wthin the state budget.

Senator WI ken next referenced page 1, lines 6 and 7, "Toward that
end, each state agency shall, on a sem -annual basis, identify
resul ts-based neasures.” He said this is currently provided

annual |y and asked why it should be increased to bi-annual.

Co-Chair Kelly corrected that the reporting is already done seni -
annual ly as established in statute.

Co-Chair Kelly infornmed that he requested an "ABC list" of the two
agencies for which he serves as budget subconmittee chair. He
anticipated enacting this statute and then adopting a
constitutional anmendnment that would, "bridge the |egislative and
t he Executive Branch."

ANNALEE MCCONNELL, Director, Ofice of Managenent and Budget,
Ofice of the Governor, testified she is very famliar with the

SFC- 02 (24) 02/ 21/ 02



proposed system because she developed it for the Municipality of
Anchorage. She stated she knows the advantages and di sadvant ages of
the system She stressed those prograns "around the margins" are
t he issue.

Ms. McConnell clarified the Minicipality system focuses on the
| evel of service and whether the service should be discontinued as
opposed to which services are of least inportant. She said this
process "breaks activities into lots of sub-elenents.”

Ms. McConnell informed that if she were to recreate this systemfor
the Municipality, she would do it differently because of the tine
spent on sonme unnecessary efforts. She gave an exanple of
attenpting to determ ne an acceptable |evel of service for the
Al aska State Troopers; whether there should be ten or two troopers,
whether to include the crinme lab. She stressed this is wasted
energy if "you accept the prem se that we are going have a public
safety function.™

Ms. McConnell opined "the service |level concept” is simlar to the
current inpact statenent process whereby the departnent provides an
analysis of the possible inpact a proposed specific budget
reduction could have. She remarked this is a significantly
di fferent process then that proposed by Senator WI ken. She agreed
that determ ning whether an itemis nunber 35 or nunber 42 on a
priority list is irrelevant if it has been determned that all the
activities nust be part of the basic structure.

Ms. McConnell pointed out there are instances where the |legislature
could consider elimnating an entire program which would occur
through the statutory process. She said the Adm nistration could
make suggestions as to which prograns should be elimnated. She
pointed out that nost "activities" are established in statute.
O herwi se, she warned, process would involve "the silliness of"
determ ning whether the Division of Fam |y and Youth Services is
nore or |less inportant than juvenile corrections or public health.
She reiterated this is a waste of tine in that it does not foster
productive di scussion about what |evel of service is acceptable in
each of those prograns.

Ms. McConnell stressed the Executive Branch proposed budget does
reflect the governor's priorities. She expressed there is an
"inherent m sunderstanding that we don't share priorities.” In
fact, she remarked, the proposed budget does reflect the opinions
the sponsor characterized as the nost qualified to make such
recomendat i ons.

Ms. MConnell listed the Smart Start initiative and K-12 and

SFC- 02 (25) 02/ 21/ 02



Uni versity of Al aska education as exanples of the Adm nistration's
priorities. She pointed out the legislature has a process for
determning its priorities and noted there has been agreenent wth
many of the Administration's priorities.

Ms. MConnell suggested the governor's proposed budget reflects
nore prioritizing results then is realized. She spoke to the
"phenonmenal exercise” the prioritizing provisions of this
| egi sl ation would entail. She conpared the state budget to that of
the Municipality, stressing that a nunicipality has conparatively
limted functions and geographic area to govern. She told of the
i nportance of public safety and nurses.

Ms. McConnel |l recommended continuing with the m ssions and neasures
process to determne priorities and to establish the acceptable
| evel of service. She |isted casel oads and nunber of people served
as neasures. She noted that the current level of service is the
| evel of service the public has generally determned to be
accept abl e.

Ms. McConnell addressed the "ABC list" idea. She expressed that in
theory it seens sinple, but that greater issues, such as the |eve
of service, are involved. She asked how such distinctions would be
made for youth correction prograns, as the quality of resources
invested i s apparent when neasuring success.

Ms. MConnell cautioned of the amount of detailed material the
Commttee would have to review if this |egislation were enacted.
She stated that information that would not add to constructive
di scussi ons about what budget changes is a wasted effort for both
t hose who prepare the budget and for the Conmttee.

Ms. MConnell asserted the inpact statenent process is nore
efficient. She stated this is a nore direct nmethod for obtaining
the information the |legislature needs to nake effective decisions
then generating information for "every |evel of state governnent
activity in every departnent.in every nook and cranny."

Ms. McConnell comrented that the practice of categorizing prograns
into ABC priorities would be done with the intent that all C
prograns would be elimnated. "I doubt you'd want to go through
that horrific pain for all C activities even assunmng we could
split them.and arbitrarily nmake a split.”

Ms. MConnell pointed out that not every departnent request is

included in the Governor's proposed budget because the O fice of
Managenment and Budget determ nes priorities already.

SFC- 02 (26) 02/ 21/ 02



Co-Chair Kelly remarked that Representative Dyson is frustrated by
the process. He made an anal ogy of performng surgery with mttens
on, noting that sonme agency representative have been hel pful but
ot hers have been resistant in offering information. He stated this
is the situation in the governnental systemin that the | egislature
does not have the authority to fire the president. He continued
t hat because of the separation of powers the |egislation could not
di rect the governor.

Co-Chair Kelly stressed that another method shoul d be established
to obtain information so the |egislature could nake decisions. This
prioritization, he expressed, could provide a "clearer view in
maki ng the "mttens" | ess cunbersone.

Co-Chair Kelly addressed the witness' statenent that the governor's
proposed budget is prioritized. He pointed out that the |egislature
has rarely received recomendations from the Admnistration for
wher e budget reductions could be nmade.

Co-Chair Kelly remarked, "we've been in a war for seven years”
explaining, "we can't get the information fromyou;, we can't get
the prioritization fromyou; I"'msure there's things that you can't
get fromus."

Co-Chair Kelly remarked this legislation is an attenpt to "force"
the legislature and the adm nistration to "work together a little
nore cooperatively and in the best interest of the State of
Al aska." He encouraged the witness "to get on board with this,
because for one thing, you're not going to have to live with it."
He continued, "Frankly this Admnistration isn't going to have to
deal with this." However, he surm sed the w tness experienced the
useful ness of the prioritization process for the Minicipality of
Anchor age.

Ms. McConnell clarified she would "do it very differently if | were
doing it again in Anchorage."

Co-Chair Kelly responded he wanted Ms. MConnell's assistance so
that she could assist in making necessary adjustnments for the
benefit of future adm nistrations.

Ms. McConnell noted that what Co-Chair Kelly had characterized as a
"war", she considered were disagreenents over whether there should
be budget reductions.

Co-Chair Kelly agreed there are two sides of the issue.

Ms. McConnell noted that if the Admi nistration's judgnent is that

SFC- 02 (27) 02/ 21/ 02



i ncreased resources were necessary, the Adm nistration would rel ay
that to the Legislature. She did not perceive the controversy as a
war but rather a public policy difference of opinion, which is
valid to discuss. She opined it is appropriate for the legislature
to determine where to cut. She added that it is inappropriate to
require the Administration to inplement an wunall ocated budget
reduction if the Adm nistration has determ ned that reduction is
unadvi sabl e.

Ms. McConnell detailed the process undertaken before any increase
is included in the Governor's proposed budget, because an increase
is not an easy aspect for to the legislature or the public. She
poi nted out these efforts have not been acknow edged and enphasi zed
the difficulty in "keeping up with inflation" and popul ation
i ncreases, specifically the senior population and inmate
popul ation. She indicated that the Admnistration would do
everything possible to mnimze the anount of requested increases.

Ms. McConnell referenced the comments of Co-Chair Kelly regarding
the "board of directors”. She commented that the state is not
simlar to a private corporation, because in a private business,
during times of economic difficulties, there is no requirenent to
answer to the public for its actions. In contrast, she stated, the
public continues to expect the state to educate children and pl ow
roads. She added that roads nust be maintained despite the nunber
of commuters traveling them

Co-Chair Kelly interjected that the wtness had listed high
priority itens and he enphasized the |egislature needs advice
regarding those lower priority itens. He stated that was the | evel
of communi cation that the |egislature has never been able to get.
He understood agency directors do not want make reductions this
way. He agreed that the state is not a corporation. He stressed
the frustration is that the legislature has many of the
responsibilities of a board of directors and the Executive Branch
has many of the responsibilities of a manager, "yet it's slightly
out of whack."

Co-Chair Kelly reiterated the prioritization process could begin to
bridge that gap in order to be able to operate in a nore reasonabl e
fashion. He continued, there needs to be a higher |evel of
comuni cation with the Executive Branch. The Executive Branch
shoul d not be able to "thunb their nose" at the Legislature.

Ms. MConnell explained that the Executive Branch has proposed
budget reductions in response and the Admi nistration's advice has
been di sregarded. She gave the proposed budget reductions to the
Department of Transportation and Public Facilities as an exanple

SFC- 02 (28) 02/ 21/ 02



where the Adm nistration recommended cl osi ng nai nt enance stations
| ocated al ong | east used roads. The Legislature has directed the
Depart nent agai nst such actions, she said.

Ms. McConnell advised that the Governor is not suggesting that the
budget be cut at this point, but rather he is acknow edgi ng that
the State does have sone needs for increases in the budget, to keep
up with current conmtnents and to take on new chal | enges.

Ms. McConnell pointed out that spending increases have not been
proposed by the Admnistration to account for increases in
popul ati on and/or inflation. She cited the Kato study, which found
t hat between 1990 and 1997, the average increase in state spending
after adjusting for inflation, was 27 percent anong all fifty
states. During that tine period, she continued, Al aska was the only
state with a reduction, which was .6 percent. She noted three
states increased spending by over 50 percent. She also inforned
that Al aska's general funds/per capita expenditures, adjusted for
inflation, are $1,100 less in the Governor's proposed FY 03 budget
then in 1979 before the oil revenues were avail abl e.

Ms. MConnell addressed governnment efficiency. She listed the
Division of Banking, Securities and Corporations and their
"enor nous backl og" for processing corporate filings. She inforned
that w thout requesting additional funding, the D vision "saved
noney by doing things differently so they could cut down that |ag
tinme. "

Ms. McConnell concl uded that budget increase requests were only for
those areas "we feel we have absolutely gone as far we can to
squeeze the turnip."

Co-Chair Kelly restated the intent is for the Admnistration to
inform the Legislature of areas where budget reductions are
possible. He reiterated that the Commttee nenbers do not know of
the internal budget reductions.

Co-Chair Kelly nentioned frustrations in dealing with sone
enpl oyees of the Adm ni stration who woul d not provide information.
He qualified there is a "difference of opinion."

Representative Dyson recommended ending the discussions on the
budget reductions and return to determning whether the
prioritization issue is preferred. He pointed out this |egislation
would require less labor then detailed cost analysis of each
program

Representati ve Dyson acknow edged that he is not in favor of across

SFC- 02 (29) 02/ 21/ 02



the board budget reductions because it is the legislature's
responsibility to establish priorities and determ ne whether an
activity should be elimnated. He stressed this bill would assi st
the Legislature in nmaking decisions regarding priorities.

Co-Chair Kelly noted the bill is "well into the process"” and he
intended to hold it in Conmttee to allow consideration of other
prioritizing nmethods. He indicated it is his intent to pass the
bill.

Co- Chair Donl ey voi ced support of the bill
Co-Chair Kelly ordered the bill HELD in Commttee.
#HB96

SENATE CS FOR CS FOR HOUSE BILL NO. 96( STA)
"An Act relating to acquisition and devel opnent of the Jesse
Lee Hone; and providing for an effective date."”

This was the second hearing for this bill in the Senate Finance
Commi ttee.

SFC 02 # 14, Side B 11:59 AM

JUDY BI TTNER, Chief/State H storic Preservation Oficer, Ofice of
Hi story and Archaeol ogy Al aska Historical Conm ssion, Division of
Par ks and Qutdoor Recreation, Departnent of Natural Resources,
testified via teleconference froman off-net site to address the
revi sed fiscal note. She noted the $30,000 general fund match woul d
be used for the architectural assessnent and that the $30,000 to
$35,000 federal funds it secures is not reflected on the fisca
note because the Division has already received the funds. She
expl ai ned the general fund reduction from $35,000 as indicated in
the previous fiscal note is possible due to a grant al ready awar ded
to the Cty of Seward to perform the environnental assessnent,
whi ch woul d be nmatched fromthe historic preservation fund.

Ms. Bittner then expl ained the proposed Jesse Lee Honme Conm ssion
was originally envisioned as a "stand alone”™ group wth
representation from Seward and ot her areas of the state. This, she
stated would require a significant travel budget of $4,500 per
neeting. She inforned that instead, the Seward Historical
Comm ssion woul d serve as the core group working with the Gty of
Seward "and enhance that as we see needed with certain expertise."

SFC- 02 (30) 02/ 21/ 02



As a result of this change, she noted the travel budget is
decreased and general funds would be utilized for travel and
Comm ssi on support expenses incurred by the Departnment of Natural
Resour ces.

Co- Chair Kelly asked how much the $30, 000 general fund nmatch woul d
secure in federal funding.

Ms. Bittner answered $30, 000 to $35, 000.
Co-Chair Kelly asked specifically how those funds woul d be used.

Ms. Bittner replied the funds would pay for the architectural
assessnment of the |arge building, which would provide an assessnent
of the structural condition as well as advice on appropriate uses
and cost estimates for the facility. She noted it is the
architectural assessnent that would provide the information needed
"to provide sonme good advice to Seward, to the state of Al aska, to
the | egi slature, about some feasible options.™

Co-Chair Kelly asked if the $30,000 federal funds were already
appropri at ed.

Ms. Bittner affirnmed and explained the State Hi storic Preservation
O fice has authorization to receive and expend these funds for
grants.

Anendnent #2: This anendnent inserts "if practical™ on page 1, line
12 of the commttee substitute. The anended |anguage reads as
fol |l ows.

(c) It is the intent of the legislature that, if
practical, the Jesse Lee Hone and the real property on which
it is located be preserved and managed in a manner that
recognizes its place in the state's history...

This anmendnent also inserts, "the possible"” on page 2, line 9 of
the conmttee substitute. The anended | anguage reads as foll ows.

..The departnent shall report to the governor, and the
| egi sl ature by Novenber 1, 2003, concer ni ng its
reconmendations as to the procedures to be used and an
estimate of costs involved for the possible preservation of
t he hone, erection of an appropriate nonunent,

Co- Chair Donl ey noved for adoption

Representative Lancaster indicated no objection, stressing the

SFC- 02 (31) 02/ 21/ 02



intent of the bill is to determne whether the building is
sal vageabl e.

W t hout objection the anendnment was ADOPTED.

Co-Chair Donley offered a notion to report SCS CS HB 96 (FIN) from
Committee with $45,000 fiscal note fromthe Departnent of Natural
Resour ces.

There was no objection and the bill MOVED from Commttee.

#
ADJ CURNIVENT

Co-Chair Pete Kelly adjourned the neeting at 12: 07 PM

SFC- 02 (32) 02/ 21/ 02



